BY-LAWS

OF

WINDERMERE OAKS WATER SUPPLY CORPORATION

ARTICLE 1 - NAME

The name of the Corporation is Windermere Oaks Water Supply Corporation.

ARTICLE 2 - NONPROFIT CORPORATION

The Corporation is a non-profit, member-owned, member controlled water supply and sewer service corporation incorporated under the provisions and definitions of TEX. REV. CIV. STAT. ANN. art. 1434a (now Texas Water Code Chapter 67) and the Texas Non-Profit Business Corporation Act. The Corporation shall have members. The members shall elect the governing Board of Directors. The Corporation shall be subject to the Texas Open Meetings Act, Gov't Code Chapter 551 and the Texas Public Information Act, Gov't Code Chapter 552.

ARTICLE 3 - PURPOSES

The purpose of the Corporation is to furnish a water supply or sewer service, or both, to towns, cities, private corporations, individuals, and military camps and bases, and for the purpose of providing a flood control and drainage system for towns, cities, counties, other political subdivisions, private corporations, individuals, and other persons.

ARTICLE 4 - POWERS

Except as otherwise provided in these bylaws, the Corporation's articles of incorporation or the laws of this state, the Corporation shall have all powers invested in a water supply or sewer service corporation by 1434a, the Texas Non-Profit Corporation Act, the Texas Water Code, and the administrative rules of the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality and its successor agency(ies), not inconsistent with Internal Revenue Code Section 501(c)(12)(A) and related federal regulations, rulings, and procedures.

ARTICLE 5 - RESTRICTIONS AND REQUIREMENTS

1. DIVIDENDS

No dividends shall ever be paid upon the memberships of the Corporation. No income of the Corporation may be distributed to members, directors, or officers in these roles. All profits arising from the operations of the business of the Corporation shall be annually paid out to cities, towns, counties, other political subdivisions, private corporations, and other persons who have during the past year transacted business with the Corporation, in direct proportion to the amount of business so transacted; provided that no such dividends shall ever be paid while any indebtedness of the Corporation remains unpaid and, provided also, that the directors of the Corporation may allocate to such sinking fund(s) such amount of profits as they deem necessary for maintenance, upkeep, operation, and replacements.

2. TRANSFER OF ASSETS UPON DISSOLUTION

Upon discontinuance of the Corporation by dissolution or otherwise, all residual assets of the Corporation remaining after payment of the lawful indebtedness of the Corporation or return of excess profits to members shall be distributed among the members and former members in direct proportion to the amount of their patronage with the Corporation insofar as practical. Any indebtedness due the Corporation by a member for water/sewer service or otherwise shall be deducted from such member's share before final distribution. By application for and acceptance of membership in the Corporation, each member agrees that, upon discontinuance of the Corporation by dissolution or otherwise, all assets of the Corporation transferred to that member shall be in turn immediately transferred by that individual member to an entity that provides a water supply or sewer service, that is exempt from ad valorem taxation. By application for and acceptance of member grants the Corporation's Board of Directors that member's irrevocable power of attorney to execute all instruments and documents necessary to effectuate such transfers in order to preserve the Corporation's statutory rights to exemption from income and ad valorem taxation.

3. LIMITATION ON ACTIVITIES

The Corporation shall have no power to engage in activities or use its assets in a manner that are not in furtherance of the legitimate business of a water supply cooperative or sewer service cooperative as recognized by 1434a and Internal Revenue Code 501(c)(12)(A).

ARTICLE 6 - OFFICES

1. REGISTERED OFFICE AND AGENT

The registered office of the Corporation shall be maintained at 424 Coventry Road, Spicewood, Texas 78669-3119 in the State of Texas. The registered agent shall be the duly elected President. The registered office or the registered agent, or both, may be changed by resolution of the board of directors, upon filing the statement required by law.

2. PRINCIPAL OFFICE

The principal office of the Corporation shall be at 424 Coventry Road, Spicewood, Texas 78669-3119 provided that the board of directors shall have the power to change the location of the principal office in its discretion.

3. OTHER OFFICES

The Corporation may also maintain other offices at such places within or without the State of Texas as the board of directors may from time to time appoint or as the business of the Corporation may require.

ARTICLE 7 - MEMBERS

1. PLACE OF MEETING

All meetings of members shall be held either at the registered office of the Corporation in Texas or at such other places, either within or without the state, as shall be designated in the notice of the meeting.

2. ANNUAL MEETING

The annual meeting of members for the election of directors and for the transaction of all other business which may come before the meeting shall be held per Sec. 67.007 of the Texas Water Code between January 1 and May 1 at a time specified by the board. The Corporation may hold other special meetings of the members for the purpose of conducting an election on an issue that requires a vote of the membership or for another purpose.

A members meeting (annual or special) may be called by resolution of the board of directors, the president, or by a writing filed with the secretary signed either by a majority of the directors or by members owning a majority of memberships in the Corporation and entitled to vote at any such meeting.

3. NOTICE OF MEMBERS' MEETING

Written or printed notice stating the place, day and hour of the meeting, and in case of a special meeting, the purpose or purposes for which the meeting is called, shall be delivered not less than ten (10) nor more than fifty (50) days before the date of the meeting, either personally or by mail, by or at the direction of the president, secretary or the officer or person calling the meeting. If mailed, such notice shall be deemed to be delivered when deposited in the United States mail addressed to the member at his address as it appears on the membership books of the Corporation, with postage thereon prepaid.

4. MEMBERSHIPS AND VOTING OF MEMBERSHIPS

The Corporation shall have one class of `members', which shall be defined by Texas Water Code, Section 13.002(11), as it may be amended.

All customers of the Corporation must hold a membership unless otherwise exempted by law.

Each member shall be entitled to only one vote on each matter submitted to a vote at a meeting of members regardless of the number of memberships held by that member.

A member may vote either in person or ballot mailed or delivered to the Corporation prior to the meeting in the manner and within the deadlines prescribed in the meeting notice.

No member shall be eligible to participate in any vote of the membership if that member has an outstanding utility account balance owed to the Corporation for utility services rendered, membership fees, or authorized fees if said debt has been delinquent for a period of not less than sixty (60) days prior to the date of such election or vote.

5. CLOSING TRANSFER BOOKS AND FIXING RECORD DATE

For the purpose of determining members entitled to notice of or to vote at any meeting of members or any adjournment thereof or in order to make a determination of members for any other proper purpose, the board of directors may provide that the membership transfer books shall be closed for a stated period not exceeding thirty (30) days. If the membership books shall be closed for the purpose of determining members, such books shall be closed for at least ten (10) days immediately preceding such meeting. In lieu of closing the membership books, the by-laws or in the absence of an applicable by-law, the board of directors, may fix in advance a date as the record date for any such determination of members, not later than thirty (30) days and, in case of a meeting of members, not earlier than ten (10) days prior to the date on which the particular action, requiring such determination of members is to be taken. If the membership books are not closed and no record date is fixed for the determination of members entitled to notice of or

to vote at a meeting of members, the date on which notice of the meeting is mailed or the date on which the resolution of the board of directors declaring such election is adopted, as the case may be, shall be the record date for such determination of members. When a determination of members entitled to vote at any meeting of members had been made as provided in this section, such determination shall apply to any adjournment thereof, except where the determination has been made through the closing of membership transfer books and the stated period of closing has expired.

6. QUORUM OF MEMBERS

A quorum for the transaction of business at a meeting of the members is a majority of the members present. In determining whether a quorum is present, all members who mailed or delivered ballots to the independent election auditor or the corporation on a matter submitted to a vote at the meeting are counted as present.

7. VOTING LISTS

The officer or agent having charge of the membership books for the memberships of the Corporation shall make, at least ten (10) days before each meeting of members, a complete list of the members entitled to vote at such meeting or any adjournment thereof, arranged in alphabetical order, with the address of and the number of memberships held by each, which list, for a period of ten (10) days prior to such meeting, shall be kept on file at the registered office of the Corporation and shall be subject to inspection by any member at any time during usual business hours. Such list shall also be produced and kept open at the time and place of the meeting. The original membership books shall be prima facie evidence as to who are the members entitled to examine such list or books or to vote at any members.

ARTICLE 8 - DIRECTORS

1. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The business and affairs of the Corporation shall be managed by a board of directors. Directors must be: (a) residents of the State of Texas, (b) utility customers of the Corporation and (c) members in the Corporation.

2. NUMBER OF DIRECTORS

The number of directors shall be five (5) provided that the number may be increased or decreased from time to time by an amendment to these by-laws, but no decrease shall have the effect of shortening the term of any incumbent director. The number of directors may never exceed twenty-one (21).

There shall be two sets of directors, each serving two year terms expiring on alternate years except as provided herein. Each set of directors shall have relatively the same number of directors.

The Corporation shall have three initial directors for purposes of incorporating the Corporation and directing its affairs until the election of the first elected directors at the first annual meeting of members. All directorships shall be open for election at the first annual membership meeting. Four of the directorships shall be for terms of two years; Three directorship shall be for terms of one year. The length of the terms for the first elected directors shall be determined by lot. Thereafter, all directorships shall be for two year terms expiring on alternating years.

3. QUALIFICATIONS FOR ELECTION OR APPOINTMENT AS DIRECTOR.

(a) To be qualified for election or appointment as a director, a person must be:

(1) 18 years of age or older on the first day of the term to be filled at the election or on the date of appointment, as applicable; and

(2) a member or shareholder of the corporation.

(b) In addition to the qualifications prescribed by Subsection (a), a person is not qualified to serve as a director if the person:

(1) has been determined by a final judgment of a court exercising probate jurisdiction to be:

- (A) totally mentally incapacitated; or
- (B) partially mentally incapacitated without the right to vote; or

(2) has been finally convicted of a felony from which the person has not been pardoned or otherwise released from the resulting disabilities.

(c) If the board determines that a person serving as a director does not have the qualifications prescribed by Subsections (a) and (b), the board shall, not later than the 60th day after the date the board makes that determination, remove the director and fill the vacancy by appointing a person who has the qualifications prescribed by those subsections.

4. BALLOT APPLICATION FOR ALL MEMBER ELECTIONS.

(a) To be listed on the ballot as a candidate for a director's position, a person must file an application with the corporation that includes:

(1) the director's position sought, including any position number or other distinguishing number;

(2) the person's written consent to serve, if elected;

(3) biographical information about the person; and

(4) a statement of the person's qualifications, including a statement that the person has the qualifications prescribed by Water Code Section 67.0051.

(b) The application must be filed with the corporation not later than the 45th day before the date of the annual meeting.

(c) The corporation shall make available director candidate application forms at the corporation's main office and shall provide application forms by mail or electronically on request.

5. BALLOT FOR ALL MEMBER ELECTIONS.

(a) Not later than the 30th day before the date of an annual meeting, the corporation shall mail to each member or shareholder of record:

- (1) written notice of the meeting;
- (2) the election ballot; and

(3) a statement of each candidate's qualifications, including biographical information as provided in each candidate's application.

- (b) The election ballot must include:
 - (1) the number of directors to be elected; and
 - (2) the names of the candidates for each position.

6. ELECTION PROCEDURES FOR ALL MEMBER ELECTIONS.

- (a) A member or shareholder may vote:
 - (1) in person at the annual meeting;

(2) by mailing a completed ballot to the office of the independent election auditor or to the corporation's main office, which ballot must be received by the corporation not later than noon on the business day before the date of the annual meeting; or

(3) by delivering a completed ballot to the office of the independent election auditor or to the corporation's main office not later than noon on the business day before the date of the annual meeting.

(b) The independent election auditor, appointed by majority vote of the Board of Directors, shall receive and count the ballots before the annual meeting is adjourned.

(c) For each director's position, the candidate who receives the highest number of votes is elected.

(d) If two or more candidates for the same position tie for the highest number of votes for that position, those candidates shall draw lots to determine who is elected.

(e) The independent election auditor shall provide the board with a written report of the election results.

(f) The board may adopt necessary rules or bylaws to implement this section, including rules or bylaws to ensure the fairness, integrity, and openness of the voting process.

7. OFFICIAL BALLOT.

The Board shall adopt an official ballot form to be used in conducting the business of the Corporation for any member election. No other ballot form will be valid. Ballots from members or shareholders are confidential and are exempted from disclosure by the corporation until after the date of the relevant election. Proxies shall not be used.

8 INDEPENDENT ELECTION AUDITOR.

The Board shall select an independent election auditor not later than the 30th day before the scheduled date of the annual meeting. The independent election auditor is not required to be an experienced election judge or auditor and may serve as an unpaid volunteer. At the time of selection and while serving in the capacity of an independent election auditor, the independent election auditor may not be associated with the corporation as:

- (a) an employee;
- (b) a director or candidate for director; or

(c) an independent contractor engaged by the corporation as part of the corporation's regular course of business.

9. VACANCIES

A director may resign at any time during his term. If a director is absent from three (3) or more consecutive regular meetings of which the director was sent mailed written notice, that director may be removed by two-thirds (2/3rds) vote of all other directors in special meeting. The director subject to removal for absenteeism must be sent written notice of the time, date, place, and purpose of such meeting by certified United States mail at least ten (10) days before the meeting.

A director may be removed majority vote of all members. Any member, officer or director may present charges in writing against a director with the Secretary/Treasurer of the Corporation. If presented by a member, the charges must be accompanied by a petition sighed by at least ten (10%) percent of the members of the Corporation. Such removal shall be voted on at the next regular or special meeting of the membership. The director(s) against whom such charges have been presented shall be informed in writing of the charges at least twenty days before the meeting, and shall have the opportunity at such meeting to be heard in person or by counsel, to present witnesses and other evidence in rebuttal of such charges, and to question other witnesses. The person(s) bring such charges shall have the same rights. The president shall preside over the meeting unless (s)he is the subject of the charges, in which case the vice president shall preside. If both the president and vice president are the subject of the charges, the directors who are not subject to charges shall appoint a presiding officer by majority vote.

Any vacancy occurring in the board of directors may be filled by the affirmative vote of the remaining directors, though less than a quorum of the board. A director elected to fill a vacancy shall be elected for the unexpired term of his predecessor in office. Any directorship to be filled by reason of an increase in the number of directors shall be filled by election at an annual meeting or at a special meeting of members called for that purpose.

10. QUORUM OF DIRECTORS

A majority of the board of directors shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business. The act of the majority of the directors present at a meeting at which a quorum is present shall be the act of the board of directors.

11. ANNUAL MEETING OF THE DIRECTORS

Within thirty days after each annual meeting of members the board of directors elected at such meeting shall hold an annual meeting at which they shall elect officers and transact such other business as shall come before the meeting. Nothing in these bylaws or any

action of the board of directors shall prohibit the holding of the annual meeting of directors immediately following and at the same place as the annual meeting of members except the unavailability of all directors elected at the annual meeting; in which such case, the annual meeting of directors shall be held within thirty days.

12. REGULAR MEETING OF DIRECTORS

A regular meeting of the board of directors may be held at such a time as shall be determined from time to time by resolution of the board of directors.

13. SPECIAL MEETINGS OF DIRECTORS

The secretary shall call a special meeting of the board of directors whenever requested to do so by the president or by two directors. Such special meeting shall be held at the time specified in the notice of meeting.

14. PLACE OF DIRECTORS' MEETINGS

All meetings of the board of directors (annual, regular or special) shall be held either at the principal office of the Corporation or at such other place, either within or without the State of Texas, as shall be specified in the notice of meeting.

The board of directors shall provide access for the public, new service applicants, and/or members to all regular meetings of the board by setting aside time for hearing of suggestions, proposals, or grievances. Reasonable time limitations may be imposed on persons appearing to address the board on such matters.

15. NOTICE OF DIRECTORS' MEETINGS

Notice of regular or special meetings of the Board of Directors shall be given as required by law and shall include posting of the meeting as required by the Texas Open Meetings Act, Texas Government Code, Sections 551.001 et seq., by furnishing the notice to the county clerk or clerks of the county or counties in which the Corporation provides service, and by posting such notice in a place readily convenient to the public in its administrative office at all times at least seventy-two (72) hours preceding the scheduled time of the meeting. Such notice shall specify the date, hour, place and subject of each meeting held by the Board of Directors. In case of emergency or urgent public necessity, which shall be clearly identified in the notice, it shall be sufficient if the notice is posted four hours before the meeting is convened. Cases of emergency or urgent public necessity are limited to imminent threats to public health or safety or reasonably unforeseeable situations requiring immediate action by the Board. In the event of an emergency meeting, it shall be sufficient if notice is posted four hours before the meeting is convened, and the President or two or more Directors calling such emergency meeting shall, if the request therefor containing all pertinent information has previously been filed at the headquarters

of the Corporation, give notice by telephone or telegraph to any news media requesting such notice and consenting to pay any and all expenses incurred by the Corporation in providing such special notice. All such meetings shall then be conducted in the manner required by the Texas Open Meetings Act.

Unless waived in writing, each director must be given a copy of all meeting notices within no less than the time limits set forth above. Notice of annual and regular meetings must be given at least ten (10) days before the meeting. Notice to directors may be by regular mail or hand delivery.

16. ATTENDANCE AT MEETINGS

As all meetings of directors must be open to the public, unless otherwise allowed by the Texas Open Meetings Act for emergency situations, telephone or other similar meetings shall not be permitted. Directors must attend meetings in person.

17. COMPENSATION

Directors, as such, shall not receive any stated salary for their services, but by resolution of the board of directors, expenses of attendance, if any, may be allowed for attendance at each annual, regular or special meeting of the board, provided, that nothing herein contained shall be construed to preclude any director from serving the Corporation in any other capacity and receiving compensation therefor.

18. CONFLICT OF INTEREST

The board of directors shall adopt and maintain a conflict of interest policy designed to promote the business of the Corporation and serve the interests of the membership. A director shall not be prohibited from providing goods or services to the Corporation at competitive prices by reason of their directorship, but said director shall not be authorized to vote on any matter in which they may have a pecuniary interest except as a customer of the Corporation. A director has an affirmative duty to exercise reasonable due diligence to investigate and disclose any real or apparent conflicts of interests or pecuniary interests (s)he may have on a matter affecting the Corporation or its members.

No director shall be liable to the Corporation or to the Corporation's membership for monetary damages for any act or omission in the director's capacity as a director of the Corporation, except and unless the director shall be found liable for a breach of the director's duty of loyalty to the Corporation or the Corporation's membership; an act or omission not in good faith that constitutes a breach of the director's duty to the Corporation or an act or omission that involves intentional misconduct or knowing violation of the law on the part of the director; a transaction from which the director receives an improper benefit, whether or not the benefit results from an act or omission for which liability of the director is expressly provided by Texas law.

19. GOOD FAITH RELIANCE

In conducting their duties as members of the board, each director (1) shall be entitled to rely, in good faith and with ordinary care, on information, opinions, reports or statements, including financial statements and other financial data, concerning the Corporation of the Corporation's affairs that have been prepared or presented by one or more officers or employees of the Corporation; or by legal counsel, public accountants, registered engineers, or other persons retained by the Corporation for the development of professional advice and information falling within such person's professional or expert competence; (2) may believe, in good faith and with ordinary care, that the assets of the Corporation are at least that of their book value; and (3) in determining whether the Corporation has made adequate provision for the discharge of its liabilities and obligations, may rely in good faith and with ordinary care on the financial statements of, or other information concerning, any person or entity obligated to pay, satisfy or discharge some or all of the Corporation's liabilities or obligations; and may rely in good faith and with ordinary care on information, opinions, reports or statements by one or more officers or employees of the Corporation; or by legal counsel, public accountants, registered engineers, or other persons retained by the Corporation provided that said director reasonably believes such matters fall within such person's professional or expert competence. Nevertheless, a director must disclose any knowledge which (s)he may have concerning a matter in question that makes reliance otherwise provided herein to be unwarranted.

ARTICLE 9 - OFFICERS

1. OFFICERS ELECTION

The officers of the Corporation shall consist of a president, a vice-president, and a secretary-treasurer. All such officers shall be elected at the annual meeting of the board of directors. Directors may be elected officers. If any office is not filled at such annual directors meeting, it may be filled at any subsequent regular or special meeting of the board. The board of directors at such annual meeting, or at any subsequent regular or special meeting may also elect or appoint such other officers and assistant officers and agents as may be deemed necessary. Any two or more offices may be held by the same person, except the offices of president and secretary-treasurer.

All officers and assistant officers shall be elected to serve until the next annual meeting of directors (following the next annual meeting of members) or until their successors are elected; provided, that any officer or assistant officer elected or appointed by the board of directors may be removed with or without cause at any regular or special meeting of the board whenever in the judgment of the board of directors the best interests of the

Corporation will be served thereby, but such removal shall be without prejudice to the contract rights, if any, of the person so removed. Any agent appointed shall serve for such term, not longer than the next annual meeting of the board of directors, as shall be specified, subject to like right of removal by the board of directors.

2. VACANCIES

If any office becomes vacant for any reason, the vacancy may be filled by a majority vote of the board of directors.

Officers may resign.

Officers may be removed for good cause by the membership under the same procedures applying to directors.

Officers shall serve at the pleasure of the directors and may be removed at any time by a two-thirds vote of the directors. Officers against whom written charges have been brought shall be entitled to the same notice and hearing rights as directors.

3. POWER OF OFFICERS

Each officer shall have, subject to these by-laws and art. 1434a, VATCS, in addition to the duties and powers specifically set forth herein, such powers and duties as are commonly incident to his office and such duties and powers as the board of directors shall from time to time designate. All officers shall perform their duties subject to the directions and under the supervision of the board of directors. The president may secure the fidelity of any and all officers by bond or otherwise.

4. PRESIDENT

The president shall be the chief executive officer of the Corporation. He shall preside at all meetings of the directors and members. He shall see that all orders and resolutions of the board are carried out, subject however, to the right of the directors to delegate specific powers, except such as may be by statute exclusively conferred in the president, to any other officers of the Corporation.

He or any vice-president shall execute bonds, mortgages and other instruments requiring a seal, in the name of the Corporation, and, when authorized by the board, he or any vicepresident may affix the seal to any instrument requiring the same, and the seal when so affixed shall be attested by the signature of either the secretary or an assistant secretary. He or the secretary-treasurer shall sign certificates of membership.

The president shall be ex-officio a member of all standing committees.

He shall submit a report of the operations of the Corporation for the year to the directors at their meeting next preceding the annual meeting of the members and to the members at their annual meeting.

5. VICE-PRESIDENT

The vice-president shall, in the absence or disability of the president, perform the duties and exercise the powers of the president, and he shall perform such other duties as the board of directors shall prescribe.

6. THE SECRETARY-TREASURER AND ASSISTANT SECRETARIES-TREASURER

The secretary-treasurer shall attend all meeting of the board and all meetings of the members and shall record all votes and the minutes of all proceedings and shall perform like duties for the standing committees when required. He shall give or cause to be given notice of all meetings of the members and all meetings of the board of directors and shall perform such other duties as may be prescribed by the board. He shall keep in safe custody the seal of the Corporation, and when authorized by the board, affix the same to any instrument requiring it, and when so affixed, it shall be attested by his signature or by the signature of an assistant secretary-treasurer.

The secretary-treasurer shall have the custody of the corporate funds and securities and shall keep full and accurate accounts of receipts and disbursements in books belonging to the Corporation and shall deposit all moneys and other valuable effects in the name and to the credit of the Corporation in such depositories as may be designated by the board of directors.

The secretary-treasurer shall disburse the funds of the Corporation as may be ordered by the board of directors, taking proper vouchers for such disbursements. He shall keep and maintain the Corporation's books of account and shall render to the president and directors an account of all of his transactions as treasurer and of the financial condition of the Corporation and exhibit his books, records and accounts to the president or directors at any time. He shall disburse funds for capital expenditures as authorized by the board of directors and in accordance with the orders of the president, and present to the president for his attention any requests for disbursing funds if in the judgment of the secretary-treasurer any such request is not properly authorized. He shall perform such other duties as may be directed by the board of directors or by the president.

If required by the board of directors, he shall give the Corporation a bond in such sum and with such surety or sureties as shall be satisfactory to the board for the faithful performance of the duties of his office and for the restoration to the Corporation, in case of his death, resignation, retirement or removal from office, of all books, papers, vouchers, money and other property of whatever kind in his possession or under his control belonging to the Corporation.

The assistant secretary-treasurer shall, in the absence or disability of the secretary-treasurer, perform the duties and exercise the powers of the secretary-treasurer, and he shall perform such other duties as the board of directors shall prescribe.

In the absence of the secretary-treasurer or an assistant secretary-treasurer, the minutes of all meetings of the board and members shall be recorded by such person as shall be designated by the president or by the board of directors.

7. GENERAL MANAGER

a. The Corporation shall not be required to have a general manager; however, the business of the Corporation may be handled under the direction of the board of directors, by a general manger to be elected by a majority vote of the board. The general manager shall be employed at a salary to be fixed by the board of directors. The general manager shall perform such duties and for such term or office as shall be fixed by majority vote of the board of directors.

b. The general manger shall not have authority to expend the funds of the Corporation in excess of \$10,000.00 per expenditure without prior approval of the board of directors.

c. The general manger shall not have authority to sell or dispose of the assets of the Corporation in excess of \$5,000.00 without prior approval of the board of directors.

8. COMPENSATION

The Corporation shall not be obligated to pay salaries to any officer; however, if approved by the board of directors, salaries of all officers of the Corporation, except the secretary-treasurer and general manager, shall not exceed \$5000.00 per annum. The salary of the secretary-treasurer shall be fixed by the board of directors at a sum commensurate with the duties required of him.

9. CONFLICT OF INTEREST

An officer shall not be prohibited from providing goods or services to the Corporation at competitive prices by reason of their office. An officer has an affirmative duty to exercise reasonable due diligence to investigate and disclose to the board of directors any real or apparent conflicts of interests or pecuniary interests (s)he may have on a matter affecting the Corporation or its members.

10. GOOD FAITH RELIANCE

In conducting their duties as officers, each officer (1) shall be entitled to rely, in good faith and with ordinary care, on information, opinions, reports or statements, including financial statements and other financial data, concerning the Corporation of the Corporation's affairs that have been prepared or presented by one or more officers or employees of the Corporation; or by legal counsel, public accountants, registered engineers, or other persons retained by the Corporation for the development of professional advice and information falling within such person's professional or expert competence; (2) may believe, in good faith and with ordinary care, that the assets of the Corporation are at least that of their book value; and (3) in determining whether the Corporation has made adequate provision for the discharge of its liabilities and obligations, may rely in good faith and with ordinary care on the financial statements of, or other information concerning, any person or entity obligated to pay, satisfy or discharge some or all of the Corporation's liabilities or obligations; and may rely in good faith and with ordinary care on information, opinions, reports or statements by one or more officers or employees of the Corporation; or by legal counsel, public accountants, registered engineers, or other persons retained by the Corporation provided that said officer reasonably believes such matters fall within such person's professional or expert competence. Nevertheless, an officer must disclose any knowledge which (s)he may have concerning a matter in question that makes reliance otherwise provided herein to be unwarranted.

ARTICLE 10 - CERTIFICATES OF MEMBERSHIP, ETC.

1. CERTIFICATES OF MEMBERSHIP

The Corporation is and shall continue to be a Corporation without capital stock, and membership in the Corporation shall be deemed personal estate and shall be transferable only on the books of the Corporation. Notwithstanding the personalty characterization of memberships, memberships may be conditioned upon or tied to ownership in realty property in the area served as may be provided by Texas law.

The certificates for memberships of membership of the Corporation shall be numbered and shall be entered in the Corporation as they are issued. They shall exhibit the holder's name and shall be signed by the president or secretary-treasurer and shall be sealed with the seal of the Corporation or a facsimile thereof. In case any officer or officers who shall have signed or whose facsimile signature or signatures shall have been used on any such certificate or certificates shall cease to be such officer or officers of the Corporation, whether because of death, resignation or otherwise, before said certificate or certificates shall have been issued, such certificate may nevertheless be issued by the Corporation with the same effect as though the person or persons who signed such certificates or whose facsimile signature or signatures shall have been used thereon had been such officer or officers at the date of its issuance. Certificates shall be in such form as shall in conformity to law prescribed from time to time by the board of directors. The Corporation may appoint from time to time agents and registrars, who shall perform their duties under the supervision of the secretary-treasurer.

2. TERMINATION OF MEMBERSHIPS

Membership in the Corporation may be tied to fee simple ownership to property with the Corporation's utility service area; however, a fee simple owner of real property within the utility service area may hold a membership so that tenants or occupants of his property may receive utility service from the Corporation. Non-fee simple title holders who take utility service from the Corporation may hold memberships in their own names, which memberships shall not be tied to real property. The membership rights of any subscriber to utility service from the Corporation shall automatically terminate upon the occurrence of any event or change of circumstances which would disqualify the person from membership as provided by these bylaws, including but not limited to, the sale of the membership real property to which his membership is tied.

Memberships in the corporation may be transferred as provided by art. 1434a, Section 9A, VATCS, as amended, except no membership may be transferred until all monies owed the corporation by the member and/or person obtaining service through such membership have been paid in full.

The board of directors may cancel the membership associated with any utility service account which has an unpaid balance for a period of more than sixty days after the original due date. In the event of such cancelation, the membership fee associated with such membership shall be forfeited to the corporation without prejudice to the corporation's right to pursue such additional collection remedies which may exist at law or in equity. In the event a membership is cancelled for such delinquency, utility service shall not be restored to the service connection associated with such membership until a new membership has been applied for and the current membership fee paid. The applicant for restored service must also comply with all other customary conditions precedent to receiving utility service including, but not limited to, paying customary reconnection or tap fees.

3. TRANSFER OF MEMBERSHIP

(a) A person who owns a membership in the Corporation may not sell or transfer that membership to another person or entity except:

(1) by will to a transferee who is a person related to the testator within the second degree of consanguinity;

(2) by transfer without compensation to a transferee who is a person related to the owner of the membership within the second degree of consanguinity; or

(3) by transfer without compensation or by sale to the Corporation.

(b) Subsection (a) of this section does not apply to a person or entity that transfers the membership to another person as part of the conveyance of real estate from which the membership arose. In such cases the transferee must still qualify for membership as provided herein and pay all applicable membership fees.

(c) The transfer of membership under this section does not entitle the transferee to water or sewer service unless each condition for water or sewer service is met as provided in the Corporation's published rates, charges, and conditions of service.

(d) The Corporation may, consistent with the limitations prescribed by subsection (a) of this section, reassign a canceled membership to any person or entity that has legal title to the real estate from which the canceled membership arose and for which water or sewer service is requested, subject to compliance with the conditions for water or sewer service in the Corporation's published rates, charges, and conditions of service.

4. REGISTERED MEMBERS

The Corporation shall be entitled to treat the holder of record of any membership or certificate of membership as the holder in fact thereof, and accordingly shall not be bound to recognize any equitable or other claim to or interest in such membership on the part of any other person, whether or not it shall have express or other notice thereof, except as otherwise provided by law.

5. LOST CERTIFICATE

The board of directors may direct a new certificate or certificates to be issued in place of any certificate or certificates theretofore issued by the Corporation alleged to have been lost or destroyed, upon the making of an affidavit of that fact by the person claiming the certificate to be lost. When authorizing such issue of a new certificate or certificates, the board of directors in its discretion and as a condition precedent to the issuance thereof, may require the owner of such lost or destroyed certificate or certificates or his legal representative to advertise the same in such manner as it shall require to give the Corporation a bond with surety and in form satisfactory to the Corporation (which bond shall also name the Corporation's agents and registrars, if any, as obligees) in such sum as it may direct as indemnity against any claim that may be made against the Corporation or other obligees with respect to the certificate alleged to have been lost or destroyed, or to advertise and also give such bond.

6. MEMBERSHIP FEES

All persons lawfully receiving or applying to receive public utility service from the Corporation shall pay a membership fee as a condition precedent to lawfully receiving utility service. The board of directors shall establish reasonable deferred payment policies for the payment of membership fees by any other service applicant upon whom a one time payment of the entire membership fee shall work a financial hardship. Such policies shall be consistent in application on each person without regard to citizenship, race, sex, color, creed, national origin or other protected status under state or federal law. All applicants for restored service whose memberships have been forfeited to the Corporation shall pay a membership fee in addition to any applicable reconnection charges. All transferees of memberships as provided by these bylaws shall pay a membership fee. A membership fee and service application shall be required for each service connection requested regardless of whether the applicant already holds a membership. Membership fees will be refundable at the time the service customer leaves the system unless the customer has any unpaid debts or obligations to the Corporation; in which case such membership fees as the customer may have on deposit with the Corporation shall be applied to the customer's debts to the Corporation, without prejudice to the Corporation's right to pursue other legal remedies existing at law or in equity.

ARTICLE 11 - DEPOSITORY

The Board of Directors shall select as depository for the funds of the Corporation, a bank within the State of Texas which is insured with the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation and shall require of said depository such bond as the Board deems necessary for the protection of the Corporation; and such funds as the Board of Directors may from time to time allocate to a sinking fund for replacement, amortization of debts and the payment of interest which shall not be required to be expended within the year in which the same is deposited shall be invested in bonds or other evidence of indebtedness of the United States of America or deposited at interest with the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation in a savings account.

ARTICLE 12 - MISCELLANEOUS

1. INFORMAL ACTION

No action required to be taken or which may be taken at a meeting of the members, directors or members of committees, may be taken without a meeting. All actions and votes taken shall be duly recorded in the books and records of the Corporation.

2. SEAL

The Board of Directors shall provide a corporate seal, which shall be in the form of a circle and shall have inscribed thereon the name of the Corporation and the words "Corporate Seal of Windermere Oaks Water Supply Corporation".

3. BOOKS AND RECORDS

The Corporation shall keep correct and complete books and records of account and shall also keep minutes of the proceedings of its members, Board of Directors, and committees having the authority of the Board of Directors, and shall keep at the registered or principal office a record giving the names and addresses of the members entitled to vote. All books and records of the Corporation may be inspected by any member or his agent or attorney for any proper purpose at any reasonable time when so requested in writing.

With prior written request, corporate records, books, and annual reports, subject to exceptions provided by the Texas Open Records Act, Texas Government Code, Sections 552.001 et seq., including any amendments thereto, shall be available for public inspection and copying by the public or their duly authorized representatives during normal business hours subject to reasonable charge for the preparation of copies.

In the event of any conflict between the provision of the Open Records Act and the provisions of these Bylaws, the provisions of the Open Records Act shall prevail.

4. CHECKS

All checks or demands for money and notes of the Corporation shall be signed by such officer or officers or such other person or persons as the board of directors may from time to time designate.

5. FISCAL YEAR

The fiscal year of the Corporation shall begin on the 1st day of January in each and every year.

6. DIRECTORS' ANNUAL STATEMENT

The board of directors shall present at each annual meeting of members a full and clear statement of the business and condition of the Corporation.

7. AMENDMENTS

These by-laws may be altered, amended or repealed in whole or in part by the affirmative vote of a majority of the board of directors. No amendment of these bylaws affecting memberships, the voting rights of members, or the number of directors may be made without a majority vote of a quorum of members.

For so long as the Corporation is indebted for a loan or loans made by or through the Texas Water Development Board, USDA Rural Development, their successor agencies, these by-laws shall not be altered, amended or repealed without the prior written consent

of the General Fund Manager (or equivalent designated agency representative) of the Texas Water Development Board, USDA Rural Development, their successor agencies. If the Corporation becomes indebted to another state or federal financial institution and said creditor requires similar limitations on the amendment of these by-laws as a condition precedent to necessary debt financing, amendment of these by-laws shall be restricted as set forth in the loan agreement.

8. OBLIGATIONS INCIDENTAL TO INDEBTEDNESS

The board of directors may establish and operate such financial reserves, sinking funds, or debt service accounts as may be reasonably necessary to comply with loan or bond covenants entered into between the Corporation and its creditors.

Subject to such restrictions as may exist under the laws of Texas or of the United States, the board of directors may encumber the assets of the Corporation by reasonable liens or security interests as provided by the loan or bond covenants entered into between the Corporation and its creditors. When encumbered, the assets of the Corporation may not be sold, conveyed or disposed of without notice to and permission from the creditor holding such liens or security interests as provided by law and/or the sale and distribution of potable water in the ordinary course of business.

Should the Corporation become indebted to the Texas Water Development Board or other state or federal financial institution and such indebtedness is evidenced by bonds or loans, the board of directors shall be expressly empowered to adopt such standard and customary water supply or sewer service corporation bond or loan resolutions as may be required by the Texas Water Development Board or other state or federal financial institution as a condition of such indebtedness.

Amendments approved in manner prescribed by law on the 18st day of November, 2021 and are so certified by our authorized signatures below:

Patricia Gerino, Vice President

Attest:

Millal Ell Milson

Mike Nelson, Secretary/Treasurer